

COMPUTER APPLICATION MANUAL

Grand Controls Inc.

Revision: 1.20

Creation Date: 15 August 2019

Revision Log

Revision	Description	Initial	Date
1.0	Initial Release	JB	15 Aug 2019
1.20	Update to match Version 1.20 of the software	JB	18 Feb 2021





Table of Contents

1.	Introduction	7
2.	Application installation	
a.	Installation steps	9
3.	Opening the software	13
4.	Introduction to the MAIN application	14
a.	Cycling through the channels	14
b.	Viewing summary of all the channels at the same time	15
C.	Individual channel information explanation	17
d.	Channel widget buttons	19
e.	Heat cycle chart	20
f.	Title Bar buttons	21
g.	Settings screen	24
h.	Faults screen	25
i.	The about screen	26
5.	Setting up a communication channel with a HEATVIEW Controller	27
6.	Connecting to the controller	35
7.	Logging in – Advanced settings	
8.	Creating a recipe	41
a.	All the items on the recipe edit screen	42
j.	DELETEING a recipe step	45
k.	Recipe chart	45
I.	Corner rounding percent	45
9.	Individual Channel Control	47
a.	Setting up a channel	47
b.	Skipping steps in the recipe	50
C.	Naming a channel	51
d.	Output Test	51
10.	Master Slave Features	52
a.	Channel settings	
b.	Critical faults handling	
C.	Temperature Coupling	
d.	Automatic channel grouping	53

11.	Creating PDF reports	54
12.	Uploading backup data from controller	59



hearte at each and the second se



Table of Figures

Figure 1: Download link for the software on the website	8
Figure 2: Installation File in Window Explorer	9
Figure 3: User Access Controls Notification	9
Figure 4: Installation welcome screen	.10
Figure 5: Installation Start Menu folder name	.11
Figure 6: Installation of drivers request	.11
Figure 7: Installed software shortcuts	.13
Figure 8: The MAIN screen of the computer application	.14
Figure 9: Channel selection buttons on the MAIN screen	.15
Figure 10: The summary select icon	.16
Figure 11: Screenshot of the main screen showing a summary of each channel	.17
Figure 12: Channel background colors on the MAIN screen	.18
Figure 13: Channel colors on the SUMMARY screen	.18
Figure 14: Channel details	.19
Figure 15: Cycle chart display	.21
Figure 16: The Title Bar	.21
Figure 17: Settings screen	.24
Figure 18: Faults screen	.25
Figure 19: The about screen	.26
Figure 20: No connection to controller	.28
Figure 21: Communication channel button	.28
Figure 22: Communications channels screen	.29
Figure 23: Creating communications channel	.29
Figure 24: Communication search results	.30
Figure 25: Selecting controller communications info	.31
Figure 26: Selecting the type of communication	.31
Figure 27: Create communications channel	.32
Figure 28: Communication channel logon info	.32
Figure 29: Communications channel successful creation indicator	.33
Figure 30: Close communication setup screen	.33
Figure 31: Close the communication channels screen.	.34
Figure 32: Controller ID address bar	.35
Figure 33: Selecting settings on the controller interface screen	.36
Figure 34: Selecting 'Remote Connection' on the controller interface screen	.36
Figure 35: Controller ID identified on the controller interface screen	.37
Figure 36: Connect button on the Main screen	.38
Figure 37: Data being shown once connection made	.38
Figure 38: Settings button	.39
Figure 39: Advanced settings display	.40
Figure 40: Additional settings for each channel	.40
Figure 41: Recipe Button on the MAIN screen	.41
Figure 42: Recipe Edit Screen - Recipe Name	.42
Figure 43: Recipe Edit Screen - New Recipe Step	.42
Figure 44: Recipe Edit Screen - Recipe Step Editor items	.43

Figure 45: Recipe Edit shift 'Up' and 'Down' buttons	43
Figure 46: Recipe Edit Screen - New Recipe Button	44
Figure 47: Recipe Edit Screen - Open and Save file buttons	44
Figure 48: Recipe Edit Screen - Channel selection	45
Figure 49: The recipe editor chart	45
Figure 50: The difference in corner rounding	46
Figure 51: Settings buttons to setup individual channels	48
Figure 52: Channel settings screen	49
Figure 53: The different 'Run mode setup' windows in the channel settings screen	50
Figure 54: Skipping through steps button in recipe	51
Figure 55: Master Slave temperature coupling	53
Figure 56: Master slave channels on enlarged chart.	53
Figure 57: Report generation button	54
Figure 58: Report generation screen	56
Figure 59: Heat cycle selection section of the report generation screen	56
Figure 60: Chart note box on report generation screen	57
Figure 61: Additional information box in the report generation screen	58
Figure 62: Example report	58
Figure 63: Upload backed-up data wait for all channels to stop message	59
Figure 64: Channel select screen for uploading backed-up data	59
Figure 65: Uploading data report generation screen	60
Figure 66: Upload data cycle selection section	61
Figure 67: Upload data complete and ready for PDF generation	62





1. Introduction

This document was created to help an operator or service technician to install and use the computer application created for the HEATVIEW temperature controller.

Please see the website: <u>heatviewcontrols.com</u> for the latest software and products.

Quick Guide to this manual:

If this is the first time you are using this software, then you should start reading this manual from Chapter 2 and follow it through until Chapter 5 as these are done in sequential order to help you step-by-step to install the program and then setup communications with a HEATVIEW controller. You can then jump around between the chapters after that depending on what you would like to accomplish.

2. Application installation

An installer is provided for a Windows® 10 platform computer and is only supported for Windows 10 and newer. This software will not work on any Mac® or Linux® machines.

To install the software, simply run the HeatView_X.X_Installer.exe file provided for the HEATVIEW controller. (Where "X.X" is the version number of the software.) If you were not supplied with the file, you can download it from <u>www.heatviewcontrols.com</u>. Once on the website, click on **DOWNLOADS** and scroll down to find the download link, as shown in the image below

KOHI VIE		
	Downloads	1
	24 Way Temperature Controllers	
	Manuals:	
To download	he HEATVIEW temperature controller manual, please click here.	
To download	he HEATVIEW computer application manual, please click here.	
	Software:	
Temperature	Controller – computer application, please <mark>click here.</mark>	
E-Furnace Co	ntroller – computer application, please click here.	

Figure 1: Download link for the software on the website



PLEASE NOTE: Admin privileges are required to install the drivers to communicate with the HEATVIEW device. If you do not have admin privileges, please ask your I.T. department to perform this installation.





a. Installation steps

Follow these steps to install the software.

- 1. Copy the installation file to your computer.
- 2. Close all other running programs (you will need to reboot your machine at the end of this installation.)
- 3. Double click installation file. The installation file for version 1.0 is shown in the image below

File Home	Share View				
n to Quick Copy access	Paste A Cut Main Copy path Paste shortcut	Move to - Copy to - Copy	e New folder	Properties	Select all Select none Invert selection
Clip	board	Organize	New	Open	Select
T	Name		Date modified	Туре	Size
-	HeatView_1	1.20.25_Installer.exe	2021-02-08 9:23 A	M Application	133,514 KB
Desktop					
Desktop Downloads	A				
 Desktop Downloads Documents 	94 34				

Figure 2: Installation File in Window Explorer

 This will open an installation window asking you if you for administrative. If you have User Account Controls turned off, you might not see this pop-up. It is shown below. <u>You</u> <u>NEED TO CLICK 'YES'</u> to install the software.



Figure 3: User Access Controls Notification

5. Next, you need to click 'NEXT >' at the welcome screen, as shown below.

🚯 HeatView 1.20.25 Setup		_		×
LS.	Welcome to HeatV Setup	iew 1.20.:	25	
	Setup will guide you through the 1.20.25.	e installation of	HeatView	
AN	It is recommended that you close before starting Setup. This will relevant system files without hat computer.	se all other app make it possible aving to reboot	ications to update your	
	Click Next to continue			
5 Ū š	Click Next to continue.			
	[Next >	Cance	el

Figure 4: Installation welcome screen

6. Next, you need to enter the name of the folder you would like to see the program installed under in your start menu. The default is "HeatView x.x" (where x.x is the version number).





🕢 HeatView 1.20.25 Setup	_	
Choose Start Menu Folder		0
Choose a Start Menu folder for the HeatView 1.20.25 sho	ortcuts.	\mathbf{O}
Select the Start Menu folder in which you would like to cre can also enter a name to create a new folder.	ate the program's s	shortcuts. You
HeatView 1.20.25		
7-Zip		~
Accessories		
ActivePerl-5.28		
Git		
Maintenance		
Qt		
StartUp System Table		
Nullsoft Install System v3.04		
< Bad	k Install	Cancel

Figure 5: Installation Start Menu folder name

- 7. Once you have entered your desired folder name, click on the "Install" button.
- 8. The installer will launch a group of processes to install all the necessary items. Please wait until it requests an input from you. The first should be a request from you to install drivers for the communications with the HEATVIEW controller as shown below. Simply click on the "Install" button to continue.



Figure 6: Installation of drivers request

- 9. The installer will ask your permission with a screen similar Figure 6 two more times. Please click 'Install' every time to continue.
- 10. Once the system has successfully installed the software, it will ask you to reboot your machine. If you are ready to do so, click 'Yes'. Otherwise, click 'No' and make sure you reboot your machine before trying to run the software.

Once the installation is complete, you can delete the install file from your computer to free up storage space.





3. Opening the software

The installer will automatically install a Desktop icon and a shortcut link in your start menu to make it simple to open and use.

You can either double-click the icon on your desktop or the start menu item as shown in the image below.



Figure 7: Installed software shortcuts

4. Introduction to the MAIN application

This document will explain features of the software in detail and will help you run through setting it up and getting it to communicate with the HEATVIEW temperature controller. This section is just a brief introduction to the MAIN screen of the application. It just shows how to read the data on the main screen while the system is running.

a. Cycling through the channels

In the figure below you can see a figure of the MAIN screen. It shows the current data of 6 channels at a time.

🕢 HeatView - 10.	0.0.18						-	- 🗆 🗙
₩\$ °	ê 문 사	$\leftarrow \rightarrow$, 7K	Controller ID: 0.18			HEAT	VIEW
<u>Channel 01</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe No Recipe	d	<u>Channel 02</u>	Pre-Heat, Runnin	g	Channel 03	Post Weld, Stoppe	d
Temperature	G , 100	Chart	Temperature	C	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart
740E	81 90	Report	740E	94 90	Report	20120E	3435-	Report
/4 Г	6270	Settings	/4 Г	72 70	Settings	3012 F	2670	Settings
Set Point	5260 1350	Start -	Set Point	61 - 60 50 - 50	Start 🗸	Set Point	1906	Start -
74°F	33 40 24	Multi Slave Sel.	79°F	39 40 28 30	Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1524	Multi Slave Sel.
	14	Name Cycle		17 20	Name Cycle		759	Name Cycle
Current	-5 0	Current Step:	Current	-5-0		Current	-5	
0 A	■ ■		0 A	• •		0 A	Primary	
		Toggle Power			Toggle Power			Toggle Power
<u>Channel 04</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe	d	<u>Channel 05</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe	ed	<u>Channel 06</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe	d
Temperature	G	Chart	Temperature	G ₃₈₁₇	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart
	3435	Report		3435	Report		3435	Report
3812°F	2670	Settings	3812°F	2670	Settings	3812°F	2670	Settings
Set Point	2288	Start 🔻	Set Point	2288-	Start 👻	Set Point	2288	Start 👻
201205	1524	Stop	201205	1524	Stop	201205	1524	Stop
3812°F	759	Name Cycle	3812°F	759	Name Cycle	3812°F	759-	Name Cycle
Current	-5	Current Sten:	Current	-5	name cycle	Current	-5	name cycle
0	Primary		0	Primary		0	Primary	
UA		Toggle Power	UA		Toggle Power	UA		Toggle Power

Figure 8: The MAIN screen of the computer application

You can cycle through the channels by clicking on the arrows at the top of the screen as highlighted in the figure below. (If your controller is only setup for 6 channels, then these arrows will be greyed out and unusable).





💮 HeatView - 10.	0.0.18						-	- 🗆 ×
₩	ê 2 #	₁ ()	אל	Controller ID: 0.18			HEAT	View
<u>Channel 01</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe No Recipe	d	<u>Channel 02</u>	Pre-Heat, Runnin	g	Channel 03	Post Weld, Stoppe	d
Temperature	3 .	Chart	Temperature		Chart	Temperature	3 3817	Chart
74°F	81 90	Report Settings	74°F	94 90 80	Settings	3812°F	3435	Settings
Set Point	62	Start -	Set Point	72 70 61 60 50 50	Start -	Set Point	2670 2288- 1906	Start -
74°F	33 10 24 30	Multi Slave Sel.	79°F	39 40 28 30	Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1524	Multi Slave Sel.
Current O	20 5 .5 0	Name Cycle Current Step: 	Current	17 6 -5 0	Name Cycle	Current O	-5 Primary	Name Cycle
07		Toggle Power			Toggle Power	0 4		Toggle Power
Channel 04	Post Weld, Stoppe	d	Channel 05	Post Weld, Stoppe	d	Channel 06	Post Weld, Stoppe	d
Temperature	G ₃₈₁₇	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart	Temperature	G ₃₈₁₇	Chart
3812°F	3435- 3053- 2670-	Report Settings	3812°F	3435 3053- 2670	Report Settings	3812°F	3435- 3053- 2670-	Report Settings
Set Point	2288	Start 💌	Set Point	2288	Start 💌	Set Point	2288	Start 💌
3812°F	1524	Stop Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1524 1142- 759-	Stop Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1524- 1142- 759-	Stop Multi Slave Sel.
Current O	-5	Name Cycle Current Step:	Current O	-5	Name Cycle	Current O	-5	Name Cycle
0 A	Primary	Toggle Power	0 A	Primary	Toggle Power	0 A	Primary	Toggle Power

Figure 9: Channel selection buttons on the MAIN screen

b. Viewing summary of all the channels at the same time

If you would like to see a summary of all the channels at the same time, you can click on the *summary* icon to show this. The *summary* icon is highlighted below. The image below that shows a representation of the summary window. To return to the normal display again, simply click on the *summary* icon again.

HeatView - 10.	0.0.18						-	- 🗆 🗙
₩ \$°	ê 문 사	$\leftarrow \rightarrow$	7 K	Controller ID: 0.18			HEAT	VIEW
<u>Channel 01</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe No Recipe	d	<u>Channel 02</u>	Pre-Heat, Runnin	g	<u>Channel 03</u>	Post Weld, Stoppe	ed
Temperature	C	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart
- 40-	81 90	Report	- 40-	94 90 90	Report		3435	Report
/4⁰⊦	6270	Settings	/4°⊦	72 70	Settings	3812℃	2670	Settings
Set Point	52-60	Start 👻	Set Point	61 60	Start 👻	Set Point	2288	Start 👻
	33	Stop		39	Stop		1524	Stop
74°F	24	Multi Slave Sel.	79°F	28	Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	759	Multi Slave Sel.
Current	5	Name Cycle	Current	6 10	Name Cycle	Current	377-	Name Cycle
0	-50	Current Step:	•	-50		0	Primany	
0 A		Toggle Power	0 A		Toggle Power	0 A	_ rindry	Toggle Power
		roggie rower			roggie rower			roggie rower
Channel 04	Post Weld, Stoppe	d	Channel 05	Post Weld, Stoppe	ed	Channel 06	Post Weld, Stoppe	ed
Temperature	3	Chart	Temperature	3	Chart	Temperature	3	Chart
	3435	Report		3435	Report		3435	Report
3812°F	3053	Settings	3812°F	3053-2670	Settings	3812°F	3053	Settings
Set Point	2288	Start 🔻	Set Doint	2288	Start 👻	Set Point	2288	Start 👻
Secroine	1906	Stop	Secroine	1906	Stop	Secronic	1906	Stop
3812°F	1142	Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1142-	Multi Slave Sel.	3812°F	1142-	Multi Slave Sel.
	377-	Name Cycle		377-	Name Cycle		377-	Name Cycle
Current	-5	Current Step:	Current	-5		Current	-5	
0 A	Primary		0 A	Primary		0 A	Primary	
		Toggle Power			Toggle Power			Toggle Power

Figure 10: The summary select icon



() HeatView - 10.0.0.18							-	
¥≉。●	-	\rightarrow	Control	ler ID: 0.18		HE	AT	IEW
CH 1 No Recipe	Settings Temper	ature: 74°F Set Point:74°F	Current: 0 A	CH 13	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 2	Settings Temper	ature: 72°F Set Point:86°F	Current: 0 A	CH 14	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН З	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 15	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 4	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 16	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 5	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 17	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 6	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 18	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 7	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 19	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 8	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 20	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
СН 9	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 21	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
CH 10 Thermocouple Unplugged	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	^{2°F} Current: 0 A	CH 22	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
CH 11	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F Set Point:3812	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 23	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A
CH 12	Settings Temperat	ure: 3812°F	2°F Current: 0 A	CH 24	Settings	Temperature: 3812°F	Set Point:3812°F	Current: 0 A

Figure 11: Screenshot of the main screen showing a summary of each channel.

c. Individual channel information explanation

Each channel shows its current data. Below is a screenshot of the MAIN screen again to highlight the channels colors. If a channel background color changes, it is to indicate the state of the channel. These states are explained in more detail later in this manual.

	HeatView - 10	.0.0.9							- 🗆 X
	₩ \$: 🖻 🛢 🖁	움 ← →	א≮ 【	Controller ID: 0.9			HEA	TVIEW
	V1.20.27 Channel 01	Post Weld, Ru	inning	Channel 02 [Slave 01]	Post Weld, Ru	inning	<u>Channel 03</u>	Post Weld, Pa	used
	Temperature	G 77	Chart Report	Temperature		Chart Report	Temperature		Chart Report
	72°F	61 80	Settings	72°F	61	Settings	72°F	61	Settings
	Set Point	14 60 36 50	Start -	Set Point	44	Make Master	Set Point	44	Start - Stop
	72°F	28	Multi Slave Sel.	72°F	28		72°F	28	Multi Slave Sel.
	Current	11 - 20 3 - 10 -5 - 0	Name Cycle Current Step:	Current	3-5-5-	e 300°F/h to 150°F	Current	3- -5	Name Cycle Resume
	0	• •	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F	о 0 А			° 0 A	Pri	Kt = 300°F/h to 150°F
Green sho	ws cha	nnel is rur	nina			Toggle Power			Toggle Power
properly.			5	nannel 05	Post Weld, Sto No Recipe	opped	Channel 06	Post Weld, St	opped
				Temperature	C16	Chart	Temperature	C	Chart
Yellow sho	ows cha	nnel is pa	used	142°F	131	Settings	3632°F	3273- 2909-	Settings
and holdin	g temp	erature.		Set Point	86-	Start 💌	Set Point	2544	Start 👻
				J. LAND	55	Stop	occ i ome	1816- 1452-	Stop
Red shows	s chann	nel is faulte	ed.	142°F	10	Multi Slave Sel.	3632°F	723-	Multi Slave Sel.
				Current	-5	Current Step:	Current	-5	Current Step:
Blue show	s chanr	nel is not r	unning.	•	Driver	Toggle Power	UA		Toggle Power

Figure 12: Channel background colors on the MAIN screen



Figure 13: Channel colors on the SUMMARY screen





Each individual channel on the MAIN screen shows a summary of the channels running information.

The image below highlights all the information you can see for the channel.



Figure 14: Channel details

d. Channel widget buttons

The buttons on the side of the channel widget allow you to perform the following functions:

- Chart This button will change the MAIN screen to show an enlarged chart. This chart is covered in <u>'Heat cycle chart</u>' on page 20 in this manual.
- <u>Report</u> This button will bring up the report generation screen to allow you to print the heat cycle chart to a PDF document for quality control. This is covered in the section '<u>Creating PDF reports</u>' on page 54 in this manual.
- Settings This button will bring up the channel's settings. This is covered in the section 'Settings screen' on page 24 of this manual.

- Start / stop These buttons will start or stop the channel. These buttons are hidden if the channel is slaved to another channel. Only the master channel can start or stop a heat cycle.
- Multi Slave Sel. This button will brin up a small widget with up to 23 check boxes on it. Each checkbox corresponds to a channel on the system. Simply select/deselect all the channels you want to have as slaves to the specified channel.
- Name Cycle This button is enabled once the channel is running. Click on it to bring up a dialog box to allow you to name the heat cycle for simplicity in the report generation screen.
- Toggle Power This button shows or hides the power usage chart on the summary chart on the MAIN screen for this channel.

e. Heat cycle chart

When a channel starts running, its temperature and set point are read and stored locally in a database. You can view this data by clicking on the channels 'Chart' button. It will bring up a chart showing its heat cycle progress, as shown below. If the channel has slave channel(s), then all the slave channel's temperature profiles will be added to the chart for easy viewing. You can also view the slave channels charts individually by clicking on their 'Chart' button.

The **chart intervals** at the top of the chart show the time between the tick lines on the chart Xaxis and the temperature difference between the ticks on the Y-axis. These values are auto generated and they will change as the chart's scale changes as the chart grows.

The **chart notes** show provide a method to record notes for the cycle. These notes will appear on the PDF report generated for quality control. To add a not, simply click on the '+' button above the **Notes List** and then click on the chart you want to add the note to. This will then bring up a dialog box to allow you to enter the information you want on the note.





Figure 15: Cycle chart display

f. Title Bar buttons



Figure 16: The Title Bar

The figure above is of the title bar found in the computer application. The buttons and information on this bar will help you control everything in the computer application. The table below gives a brief introduction to each button. The sections below it will cover them in more detail.

<u>Item</u>	Name	Description
HeatView - 10.0.0.7	Connection Status	This part of the title bar will inform you as to the connection status to a controller. If it gives a set of numbers as shown in Figure 16 above then it is connected to a controller. The controller ID will be the last 2 numbers of the string of numbers.

		-
		If the status says "Connecting to xx.xx.xx.xx" it is trying to make a connection to the temperature controller. If it is taking too long, check the ethernet connection to the unit. If it is the first time you are connecting to a specific controller, make sure you have setup a communication channel as described in section 5 – "Setting up a communication channel with a HEATVIEW Controller"
*	Connect/Disconne ct button	Clicking on this button will make the software try to connect to your controller. If the button has a blue background, then the system is trying to connect or it is connected. Clicking the button while its background is blue will make the software disconnect from the controller.
\$	Settings button	Clicking this button will bring up the software applications settings screen. It is covered in more detail in section 'Settings screen' on page 24 in this manual.
	Recipe Manager button	Clicking this button will bring up the recipe editor screen. In this screen you can define a temperature profile for a Pre-Weld heat cycle and then save it or download it to the controller. For more information see 'Creating a recipe' on page 41 of this document.
	Upload heat cycle data button	If something happened while you were connected to a controller and the software stopped logging the data on a heat cycle, you can upload the data from the controller. The data from the controller is not as detailed as the data from the computer application. More information on this is provided in section 'Uploading backup data from





		controller' on page 59 in this manual.
器	Setup communications channel button	Before you can connect to a controller, you need to setup a communications channel first. You can use this button to do that. See section 5 – "Setting up a communication channel with a HEATVIEW Controller" on page 27 in this manual for more information.
\leftrightarrow	Channel scroll buttons	If the controller is setup to run more than 6 channels, then you can scroll through each set of 6 channels on the Main screen using these buttons. The buttons become greyed out when they will have no effect.
	Faults button	If the computer application reads a fault on the controller, this button will appear. By clicking on it, you will bring up the faults screen. You can clear or silence faults by clicking on this button.
Controller ID: 0.9	Controller ID	This is the address of the controller that the software uses to address the controller. If you press on the Settings > remote connection on the touch screen of the controller. On this screen you can see the 'local controller ID'. As shown in the image below the numbers to use are 0.9
		Home Chart Settings Local Kontrol Stratituter S22.86 S22.86 Local Controller 0.9 Correct To Secure Corticler 1 1 Correct To Secure Corticler book Deck
		If you IT department requires you to change the IP address of the controller, you can type in the first 4 numbers of the 'Local Machine Net ID' number on this screen. In

		this image, the numbers are 10.0.0.9
HEAT	About button	Double-clicking on this button will bring up the 'About' screen. This screen is shown further on in this section. It is important to know about this screen as it contains your systems serial number which you will need to know when contacting your supplier for technical support.

g. Settings screen

There are a few editable settings for this software. To access them, you can click on the 'Settings button' (as shown in the table above). This will bring up the settings window.

Chart sample interval 2 minutes		~
Click button below to trip specific shunt breaker		
Shunt Trip 1 Shunt Trip 2 Shunt Trip 3 Shunt Tri	ip 4	
Log in	ОК	Cancel

Figure 17: Settings screen

The table below describes all the items in this window.

Item	Description
Chart sample interval	This is the interval at which the computer
	software will sample the data from the
	HEATVIEW controller to log into the database
	and to display on the channels cycle chart.
Shunt Trip 'x'	Pressing on one of these buttons will trip the
	shunt of the machine it is connected to.
Log in	Clicking on this button will bring up the login
	in screen. Once logged in, and advanced
	button will appear on the settings screen. The
	advanced settings screen is shown in section
	'Logging in – Advanced settings' on page 39
	of this manual.





h. Faults screen

If the software finds any active faults on the HEATVIEW controller it is currently connected to, the Faults Icon button will appear title bar. You can click on this button to bring up the faults screen to see what faults are present.

There are two types of faults. 1) System faults and 2) Channel faults. The System faults are faults that present on the controller hardware or communication to the controller faults. The channel faults are specific to each channel of the system. System faults are preceded by the text "System faults:". The channel specific faults are preceded by the text "Ch xx:" (where xx is the channel number).

🕖 Error list	-		×
System faults: Comm loss with EK1100, Comm loss module 1, Comm loss module 2, Comm loss module 4, Comm loss module 5, Comm loss module 6, Comm loss module 7, Comm loss module 8, Comm loss module 10, Comm loss module 11, Comm loss module 12 Ch 06: Thermocouple Unplugged	iodule 3, , Comm I	Comm lo oss modu	ss le 9,
Clear e	errors	Ok	

Figure 18: Faults screen

To try and clear the faults, you can click the 'Clear errors' button on the Faults screen. This will try and clear the faults, if possible. If the fault cannot be cleared, the fault will remain on the screen. Pressing the 'Ok' button will hide this screen.

Every time the software sees a new fault it will repeated play a chime sound on your computer. This will repeat until the fault is fixed and cleared or until you bring up the fault screen and click on the 'OK'. Clicking on the 'OK' button will not clear the fault, but will only acknowledge you have looked at the fault and that the system does not have to keep playing the chime.

i. The about screen

If you double-click the HEATVIEW logo on the title bar, the 'about' screen will appear. An example of the about screen is shown in the figure below.



Figure 19: The about screen

This screen gives the computer software version in the first line.

The next line gives the HEATVIEW controller serial number.

The last line gives the version of the code running on the HEATVIEW controller.





5. Setting up a communication channel with a Heat View Controller

If it is the first time you are connecting to a specific HEATVIEW controller or it is the first time you are opening the software, you need to setup a communication channel to the controller. To do this, you need to follow the steps given here in the correct order.

Once you have setup the communications channel, you do not need to repeat this process, unless you are having problems connecting to the controller again.

1. Power on the HEATVIEW controller. Wait for the device to power-up fully before continuing. This can take up to 2 minutes.



Make sure you do not have a router connected to the controller and that you do not have a STATIC IP address assigned to you networking device on your computer. You also need to make sure the 'Stand alone enable' switch is on. This switch is on the back of the console.

 Connect your computer to a HEATVIEW controller using an undamaged Ethernet cable. The Ethernet connector can be found on the side of the controller. If you do not have an Ethernet cable, you can connect to it over Wi-Fi using the Network SSID "HeatView" or "Temperature_Controller1"



Wireless SSID = "HeatView" or "Temperature_Controller1"

Password = GRANDCONTROLS

- 3. Once you are connected to the device, open the software. (See section 3 on page 13 for more info on this.)
- 4. You will notice that the software cannot get any data from the controller as shown in the image below.

¥ 🗱	┇ ┇┋ 品 ← → ⋰ ┈	uller Di ^{0.18}					HEA	VIEW
Channel 01			Channel 02			Channel 03		
Temperature	0	Report	Temperature	3	Report	Temperature	0	Raport
Set Point	-		Set Point	-		Set Point	-	
	5 2 4		-	9 8 8		TT.	-	
0 	e Phosy		0 	Dimoy		0 	a • •	
Cunnel 04			Channel 05			Channel 06		
Temperature	о. :	Seport	Temperature	о.	Haport	Temperature	о	Raport
Set Point	-		Set Point	n		Set Poert	-	
+	-	Current Stage	-	-	-	-		
Current	-		Current			Current D		
1.1	Privnery III (Sceap)	Totale Breeze		rtmary		- 5 L	Primary	

Figure 20: No connection to controller

5. Click on the communication setup button. As shown below.



Figure 21: Communication channel button





6. This will bring up another window. It might already have some entries, and depends on how many different controllers you have connected to already from this computer. To setup a communications channel, click the 'Add...' button at the bottom of the screen.

Т	winCAT Static Routes					×
	Route	AmsNetId	Address	Туре	Comment	MaxFragment
ŀ						
	Add Remo	ove				

Figure 22: Communications channels screen

7. In the new pop-up window, search for your controller by clicking the "Broadcast Search" button and waiting for it to complete its search.

dd Route Dialog						
Enter Host Name / IP:]	Refresh Status	s (Broadcast Search
Host Name C	Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Versio	on Comment
Route Name (Target):]	Route Name (Remo	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO
loute Name (Target): ImsNetId:]	Route Name (Remo	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route
toute Name (Target): ImsNetId: iransport Type:	TCP_IP	-		Route Name (Remo Target Route © Project	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route
toute Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info:	TCP_IP	•		Route Name (Remo Target Route Project Static	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route O None O Static Temporary
Route Name (Target): ImsNetId: Transport Type: Nddress Info: @ Host Name	TCP_IP Address	•		Route Name (Remo Target Route O Project O Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary
toute Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info:	TCP_IP Address 5	▼ 		Route Name (Remo Target Route Project Static Temporary	te):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary

Figure 23: Creating communications channel

8. Once the system finds the controller, it will list it in the window. Please note that it might find more than 1 item. Only those listed as having a "Win CE (7.0)" <u>OS Version</u> will be a controller. Other entries will be your computer plus others on the same network. The image below shows more than one result and highlights the correct entry.

Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Statu	JS	Broa	adcast Search
Host Name	Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Vers	sion	Comment
CP-399644		10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE	(7.0)	
•		III					
 coute Name (Target): 		III	Ro	ute Name (Rem	ote):	WIN-L3	3FKN5A5NRO
 Loute Name (Target): AmsNetId: 		III	Ro	ute Name (Rem arget Route	ote):	WIN-L3	3FKN5A5NRO te Route
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: transport Tupe: 			Ro Ta	ute Name (Rem arget Route) Project	ote):	WIN-L3 Remot	3FKN5A5NRO te Route me
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: iransport Type: 	9		Ro Ta	ute Name (Rem arget Route) Project) Static	iote):	WIN-L3 Remot © No @ Sta	3FKN5A5NRO te Route nne atic
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: iransport Type: uddress Info: 	TCP_IP		Ro Ta ()	ute Name (Rem arget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	note):	WIN-L3 Remot © No @ Sta © Te	3FKN5A5NRO te Route nne atic mporary
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: iransport Type: uddress Info: ie Host Name I II 	TCP_IP P Address		Ro Ta () () ()	ute Name (Rem arget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3 Remot © No @ Str © Te	BFKN5A5NRO te Route ne atic mporary
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: iransport Type: uddress Info: Host Name Ii Connection Timeout (s): 	TCP_IP P Address 5	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ro Ta	ute Name (Rem arget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3 Remot No Str Te	3FKN5A5NRO te Route me atic mporary

Figure 24: Communication search results

9. Click on the correct entry in the text box. This will fill out info in the entry boxes below for you.





Add Route Dialog						×
Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Status	; E	Broadcast Search
Host Name C	Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Version	Comment
CP-399644		10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE (7.0)	
WIN-L 3FKN5A5NRO		10.0.0.109	10.0.0.103.1.1	1 3.1.4022	Windows 7	Þ
Route Name (Target):	CP-39964	14		Route Name (Remo	te): WIN	I-L3FKN5A5NRO
AmsNetId:	10.0.0.3	1.1		Target Route	Ren	note Route
Transport Type:	TCP_IP	-		 Project Static 	0	None Static
Address Info:	CP-39964	14		Temporary	õ	Temporary
Host Name IP /	Address					
Connection Timeout (s):	5	-				
Max Fragment Size (kByte):	0	×		Add Route		Close

Figure 25: Selecting controller communications info

10.	Next,	click	on	the	ʻIΡ	Address'	radio	button
-----	-------	-------	----	-----	-----	----------	-------	--------

dd Route Dialog						
Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Statu	s	Broadcast Search
Host Name C	Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Versior	n Comment
CP-399644		10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE (7	.0)
WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO		10.0.0.109	10.0.0.103.1.1	. 3.1.4022	Windows 3	7
•		III				
∢Route Name (Target):	CP-3996	111]	Route Name (Rem	note): V	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId:	CP-3996] F	Route Name (Rem Target Route	note): V	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3	.1.1		Route Name (Rem Target Route Project	note): V	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP	₩ 44 •.1.1		Route Name (Rem Target Route Project Static	note): V	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static
 Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info: Host Name I IP 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address	₩ 44 .1.1		Route Name (Rem Target Route Project @ Static @ Temporary	note): W	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info: O Host Name O IP Connection Timeout (s):	CP-3996- 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address 5	₩ 44 .1.1 		Route Name (Rem Target Route Project @ Static @ Temporary	note): V	VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary

Figure 26: Selecting the type of communication

11. Next, click 'Add Route'

id Route Dialog							
Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Statu	JS	Bro	adcast Search
Host Name C	onnected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Versi	ion	Comment
CP-399644		10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE ((7.0)	
		10.0.0.109	10.0.0.105.1.1	5, 1, 4022	windows	57	
•							
Route Name (Target):	CP-3996	111	RoL	ite Name (Rem	note):	WIN-L	3FKN5A5NRO
<route (target):<br="" name="">AmsNetId:</route>	CP-3996		Rou	ite Name (Rem iget Route	ote):	WIN-L Remo	3FKN5A5NRO te Route
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: fransport Type:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP IP	₩ 44 .1.1	Rou Tar	ite Name (Rem get Route Project	ote):	WIN-L Remo	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one
< Coute Name (Target): AmsINetId: Irransport Type:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP	**************************************	Rou Tar ©	ite Name (Rem get Route Project Static	ote):	WIN-L Remo © N @ St	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one iatic
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Iransport Type: Address Info:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3	111 44 .1.1	Rou Tar © ©	ite Name (Rem get Route Project Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L Remo © N © St © Te	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one iatic emporary
 Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info: Host Name IP A 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address	111 44 .1.1	Rou Tar © ©	te Name (Rem get Route Project Static Temporary	note):	WIN-L Remo N I St T	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one tatic emporary
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info: O Host Name IP A Connection Timeout (s):	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address 5	111 44 .1.1	Rou Tar © ©	te Name (Rem get Route Project Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L Remo N St St T	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one atic emporary
Route Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info: O Host Name IP A Connection Timeout (s): Max Fragment Size (kByte):	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address 5 0	111 44 .1.1	Rou Tar © ©	te Name (Rem get Route Project Static Temporary Add Route	ote):	WIN-L Remo N St C Te	3FKN5A5NRO te Route one atic emporary Close

Figure 27: Create communications channel

12. In the 'Logon Information' screen that pops-up, make sure the User name does not change (It is always Administrator), the password field is left blank and the 'Encrypt Password' option is checked. Then click 'OK'

Logon Information	×
Enter a user name and password that is valid for the remote system.	
User name: Administrator	
Password:	
Encrypt Password (TwinCAT 3 only)	
OK Cancel	

Figure 28: Communication channel logon info

13. You should then see a channel has been formed by the placement of an 'X' next to the HEATVIEW controllers network info, as shown in the image below.





Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Statu	s	Broadcast Search
lost Name	Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Version	n Comment
P-399644	X	10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE (7.	.0)
VIN-L3FKN5A5NRO		10.0.0.109	10.0.0.103.1.1	3.1.4022	Windows 7	7
1			•			
∢ pute Name (Target):	CP-3996		Rou	ute Name (Rem	ote): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO
 oute Name (Target): 	CP-3996	.44	Roi	ute Name (Rem rget Route	note): M	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route
✓ Under the outer of the ou	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP		Rou Ta	ute Name (Rem rget Route) Project	ote): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None
 oute Name (Target): msNetId: ransport Type: 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP		Rou Ta	ute Name (Rem rget Route) Project) Static	note): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static
 oute Name (Target): msNetId: ransport Type: ddress Info: 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3		Rou	ute Name (Rem rget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	iote): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary
 oute Name (Target): msNetId: ransport Type: ddress Info: Host Name 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 IP Address		Rou	ute Name (Rem rget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	note): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary
 oute Name (Target): msNetId: ransport Type: ddress Info: Host Name onnection Timeout (s): 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 IP Address 5	111 444 3.1.1	Rot	ute Name (Rem rget Route) Project) Static) Temporary	note): W	/IN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary

Figure 29: Communications channel successful creation indicator

14. Now you can click on the 'Close' button

-						
Enter Host Name / IP:				Refresh Statu	s	Broadcast Search
Host Name (Connected	Address	AMS NetId	TwinCAT	OS Versi	ion Comment
CP-399644)	(10.0.0.3	10.0.0.3.1.1	3.1.4022	Win CE ((7.0)
		1010101105	10,000,120,111	511 1022		
•						I
 coute Name (Target): 	CP-3996	111	R	oute Name (Remo	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO
 Loute Name (Target): msNetId: 	CP-3996	44	Ro	oute Name (Remo arget Route	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route
 Loute Name (Target): ImsNetId: ransport Type: 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3	44	Rc Tr	oute Name (Remo arget Route) Project	ote):	WIN+L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route O None
Koute Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP	₩ 44 • 1.1	Rc (oute Name (Remo arget Route) Project @ Static	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route O None O Static
Koute Name (Target): AmsNetId: Transport Type: Address Info:	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3	₩ 44 5.1.1 ▼	Rc [(((oute Name (Remo arget Route Project 9 Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route O None O Static Temporary
 toute Name (Target): umsNetId: iransport Type: uddress Info: Host Name IP 	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address	111 • 1.1	R(() () ()	oute Name (Remo arget Route Project Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary
<pre> koute Name (Target): AmsNetId: 'ransport Type: Address Info: Host Name IP Connection Timeout (s): </pre>	CP-3996 10.0.0.3 TCP_IP 10.0.0.3 Address 5	111 44 • 1.1	Rc () () ()	oute Name (Remo arget Route Project Static Temporary	ote):	WIN-L3FKN5A5NRO Remote Route None Static Temporary

Figure 30: Close communication setup screen

15. Next, you can close the Routes setup screen

Route	AmsNetId	Address	Type	Comment	M xragment
CP-399644	10.0.0.3.1.1	10.0.0.3	TCP_IP		

Figure 31: Close the communication channels screen.

Now the communications channel is setup and you can set the specific controller to connect to, and start interfacing with it.





6. Connecting to the controller

To connect to a HEATVIEW controller, you need to tell the computer application what controller number to communicate with. If you have more than one controller connected in the same network, you can communicate with any one of them, but you need to tell the software which one you want to interface with.

BEFORE clicking on connection button, you need to enter the controller ID address into the title bar at the top of the software as shown in the image below.



Please note: The system records your last entered value for this, and will automatically try to reconnect to the same controller as before. If you have not changed controllers, you will not need to change this number again.





The controller ID address can be found on the touchscreen of the controller itself. Just press the **<u>Settings</u>** button on the top of the touch screen. Then press on the **<u>Remote connection</u>** button in the middle of the settings screen. These steps are shown in the images below.



1. Press on the 'Settings' button on the MAIN display as indicated in the image below:

Figure 33: Selecting settings on the controller interface screen.

2. Press on the 'Remote Connection' button in the settings screen.



Figure 34: Selecting 'Remote Connection' on the controller interface screen

3. The controller ID is given on the remote connection screen, as highlighted in the image below.





GC-Heater-V1 File Zoom Tools Help			- 🗆 X
Home		Chart	Settings
Local Machines Serial Number Local Machines Net ID:	: 00001v(10.0.0.9	db 9.1.1	
Local Controller ID:	0.9	Connect To Local Controller	
1	. 1	Connect To Remote Controller	
	Back	()	
Locin			
Login			GRAND CONTROLS Inc.

Figure 35: Controller ID identified on the controller interface screen

4. Enter the number exactly as shown on the screen in the settings pop-up window in this application.



Please note: If your IT department has forced your controller to have a different IP address than giving by the factory install, you will need to enter the first 4 values of the '**Local Machines Net ID**'. In the image above the you can get these first 4 values as '10.0.0.9'.

After you have entered the correct controller ID at the top of the software on the main screen you can click on the *connect* button as shown in the image below.

ᄫ常自己品←	→ ァヒ ▫	iontroller ID:0.9			HEAT	• ×
Channel (Channel 02			Channel 03		
Temperature Set Point Current Toggi	t Step: Port Temperature Set Point Current 	C	Report	Temperature Set Point Current O 	Primary	Report
Channel 04	Channel 05			Channel 06		
Temperature C Re	port Temperature Set Point Current o	Primary	Report	Temperature Set Point Current O 	Primary	Report
Toggk	Power					

Figure 36: Connect button on the Main screen.

Once the system has successfully connected to the temperature controller, the software will start showing data as indicated in the image below.



Figure 37: Data being shown once connection made.

You should now be able to start seeing data being read from the controller. If not, make sure you have setup a communication channel as described in section 5 – "**Setting up a communication channel with a** HEATVIEW Controller"





7. Logging in - Advanced settings

Some settings in the software can only be accessed once logged in. This section covers all the items protected by logging in. If you click on the settings button at the top of the Main screen, as shown in the image below, you can then click on the login button that appears.

Channel 01	Post Weld, Stopper		Channel 02	Pre-Heat, Run	ling	Channel 03	Post Weld	, Stopped
Temperature	0	Chart	Temperature	0	Chart	Temperature	3	Chart
		Report		- A m	Report	1000000	3110	Report
74°F	11 M	Settings	74°F	1776	Settings	3812°F		Settings
Set Point			internal.	2 million				
1000	" Cn	art sample	e interval	2 minutes				~
74°F	Cli	ck button l	pelow to t	rip specific shu	nt breaker			
Current			11.					
Correin	Cl	and Takes 4	Chevrole 7					
2	51	nunt i rip i	Snunt	I rip 2 Shunt	Trip 3 Shu	Int Trip 4		
0 A	••	nunt i rip i	Snunt	Trip 2 Shunt	Trip 3 Shi	int Trip 4	1	
0 A	••	iunt i np i	Snunt	Trip 2 Shunt	Trip 3 Shi	Int Trip 4		-
0 A	Post Weld,	Log in	Snunt	Trip 2 Shunt	Trip 3 Shu	Int Trip 4	ОК	Cancel
0 A	Post Weld,	Log in	Shunt	Trip 2 Shunt	Trip 3 Shu	Int Trip 4	ок	Cancel
0 A Sannel 94 Semperature	Post Weld	Log in	Temperature	Shunt	Chart Report	Int Trip 4	ок	Cancel Chart Report
0 A	Post Weld	Log in Chert Report Settings	Temperature 3812°F	Shunt	Chart Report Settings	Temperature 3812°F	ОК С.	Cancel Chart Report Settings
0 A sannel 94 sanperature 3812°F	Post Weld,	Log in Chort Report Settings	Temperature 3812°F	C.	Chart Report Settings	Temperature 3812°F	ОК	Cancel Chart Report Settings
0 A annel 94 emperature 3812°F Set Point	Post Weld,	Log in Chort Report Settings Start +	Temperature 3812°F Set Point	C.	Chart Report Settings Start +	Temperature 3812°F Set Point	OK	Cancel Chart Report Settings Start
0 A amod 04 emperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F	Post Weld.	Log in Chort Report Settings Start + Star	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F	Shunt	Chart Report Settings Start • Start •	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F	OK	Cancel Chart Report Start Start Start
0 A semperature 3812°F set Point 3812°F	Post Weld.	Log in Chort Report Settings Start • Start Multi Stave Sell.	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F	Shunt	Chart Report Settings Start - Stop Multi Slave Sel. Name Octo	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F	OK	Cancel Chart Report Settings Start Start Start Start Start Start
0 A hannel 04 remperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current	Post Weld.	Log in Chert Report Settings Start • Stop Mult: Stave SeL Rinne Cycle	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current	Shunt	Chart Report Settings Start - Ship Muts Slave Sel. Rame Cycle	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current	OK	Cancel Ohart Report Settings Start Stop Mutb Slave 5 (Timme Option
Annel 04 Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current	Post Weld	Log in Chort Report Settings Start • Stap Multi Stave Sel. Runn Cycle Current Step:	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current o	Randow Primary	Chert Report Settings Start - Ship Multi Slave Sel. Rame Cycle	Temperature 3812°F Set Point 3812°F Current O	OK	Chart Report Settings Start Multi Stay 5 Hame Octo

Figure 38: Settings button

You will then be presented with a login screen. You can enter the username and password assigned. The default credentials are given below. It is up to you to change the password:

Username: Operator

Password:

(The password is blank).

Once you have logged in, you will see a new button appear in the settings screen. This is titled *Adv. Settings*. This means you have logged in successfully. If you click on the *Adv. Settings* button will bring up a new screen as shown below (with 2 tabs).

The first tab allows you to turn off notifications for specific alarms. Once the item is checked off, the computer software will not show any fault notification for that fault even if it is present on the controller.

The second tab allows you to add, edit or remove users from the software. There is also the option to delete all the data that has been stored locally on the computer for the given controller.

You can also see/edit the HMI lock code for the 7" touchscreen.

🕢 Advanced Settings - Operator	×	(O Advanced Settings	- Operator			×
Fault Control Users			Fault Control	Isers			
			Clean D	Database	< use this to v All data in datab	vipe out base!	
			HMI Lock Code: 0	0000			
Ignore Heating Pad Burnt Fault			User Nar	me	Role		Add User
☐ Ignore Temperature Tolerance Fault			Operator		Supervisor		Edit User
Ignore Sudden temperature Drop Fault							Delete User
☑ Ignore No Current Fault							Delete ober
Ignore TC discrepancy Fault							
Ignore Strage Power Usgae Fault							
Checked Boxes on this page are saved immeditely. CANCEL BUTTON DOES NOT REVERT CHANGES!!							
Save Clos	e				[Save	Close

Figure 39: Advanced settings display

You can go back to the Main screen without logging out. This will also give you extra settings on each channel to modify. These settings are shown below.

🕢 Channel 01 Settings - Stopped		- 🗆 ×
Start 💌 Stop Pause	Recipe	
Run mode	Name: TestRecipe	Open File
Post Weld	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F	Save File
O Pre-Heat	Soak for 15 minutes Rate 300°E/b to 225°E	
O Percentage timer	Soak for 1 hours, 0 minutes	Write to Controller
	Rate - 100°F/h to 90°F	
Slave settings.	Curve Blend: 100 %	Edit step
□ Slave to ∨		
Tomo antina Talanana Cattinan		
Temperature Tolerance Settings.		
Bamp Upper Telerance		
Ramp Lower Tolerance		
Soak Upper Tolerance	Channel Name	
0 🗧 °F	Pipe Center. TC 1306.	
Soak Lower Tolerance		
0 ÷ •F	Output Test	
	Test Channel Current:	Temperature:
	TURN ON	74
Contactor use count: 3490		· · ·
		Ok Cancel
		Cancel

Figure 40: Additional settings for each channel.

These additional settings give you the ability to set the tolerance alarms for each channel individually. If a channel is slaved to another channel, then these values are taken from the master channel.





8. Creating a recipe

To create a heating recipe, you simply need to click the 'Recipe' button in the MAIN screen of the application and follow the steps below.



A heating recipe in the HEATVIEW system is a collection of steps the controller needs to follow. Each step is either a 'Rate' step to change the temperature of the workpiece in at a defined rate, or a 'Soak' step to keep the temperature steady for a given period of time.

HeatView - 10	.0.0.9							- 🗆 ×
\	ê 3 2	┟←→	بر (Controller ID: 0.9			HEAT	VIEW
V1.20.27 Channel 01	Post Weic,	ning	Channel 02 Slave 01	Post Weld, Ru	nning	Channel 03	Post Weld, Paus	ed
Temperature	G ₇		Temperature	C	Chart	Temperature	C.	Chart
	69-90	Report		(J)	Report		0	Report
72°F	61 80	Settings	72°F	61	Settings	72°F	61	Settings
	44 60	Start 👻		44	Make Master			Start 👻
Set Point	36 50	Stop	Set Point	36		Set Point	36	Stop
72°F	28	Multi Slave Sel.	72°F	28-		72°F	20	Multi Slave Sel.
	1120	Name Cycle		11	D 1 00005/1 1 45005			Name Cycle
Current	3 10	Current Step:	Current	-5	Rate 300°F/n to 150°F	Current	-5	Resume
0	• •	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F	0	Pri		0	Pri	ate 2000F/b to 1500F
UA		Toggle Power	UA		Toggle Power	UA		Toggle Power
	···				55		<u>ر</u> ر	55
Channel 04	Post Weld, Sto	pped	<u>Channel 05</u>	Post Weld, Sto No Recipe	opped	Channel 06	Post Weld, Stopp	ed
Temperature	2	Chart	Temperature	C.	Chart	Temperature	2	Chart
	3273	Report		131	Report		3273	Report
3632°F	2909	Settings	142°F	116	Settings	3632°F	2909	Settings
Set Point	2180	Start 👻	Set Point	86	Start 👻	Set Point	2180	Start 👻
occrome	1816	Stop	occrome	55	Stop	occrome	1816-	Stop
3632°F	1088	Multi Slave Sel.	142°F	40	Multi Slave Sel.	3632°F	1088-	Multi Slave Sel.
	359	Name Cycle		10	Name Cycle		359	Name Cycle
Current	-5	Current Step:	Current	-5	Current Step:	Current	-5	Current Step:
0 A	Primary		Ο A	Primary		0 A	Primary	
		Toggle Power			Toggle Power			Toggle Power

Figure 41: Recipe Button on the MAIN screen

The recipe editor window has several options as detailed here.

a. All the items on the recipe edit screen

Here is a description of all the items on the recipe edit screen.

1. Recipe Name entry field – This entry field holds the current name of the recipe being edited. To modify it, simply click in it and type the desired text.

🕢 Recipe Editor				-	×
Recipe Name	New recipe	C _{125.00}			
<u> </u>	Open file Save file	112.50			
O RATE Up New O SOAK Down	Read from controller	100.00			
Corner Rounding Percent	Write to controller	87.50			
		62.50			
New step		50.00			
		37.50			
		12.50			
		0.00			

Figure 42: Recipe Edit Screen - Recipe Name

2. New Step button – This button will add a step to the list of steps in the recipe, as pointed out in the figure below

💮 Recipe Editor		-	×
Recipe Name	New recipe		
Step RATE New SOAK Down	Open file 125.00 Save file 112.50 Read from controller 100.00 Write to controller 87.50		
New step	New recipe step in the Recipe display window		
	25.00 12.50 0.00		

Figure 43: Recipe Edit Screen - New Recipe Step

 Step editor buttons – The recipe step editor items allow you to define the step that is current selected in the Recipe Editor window. To edit a step, click on it, then modify it with the items highlighted in the figure below. Click on the radio buttons to switch between 'RATE' and 'SOAK' options. As you change the step option, different items will



be display next to it to allow you to set values for the step. IF THE STEP IS A NEW STEP, then you need to select from the two radio buttons (RATE or HOLD) to define the type of step it is. Once you have selected the type of step, the relevant entry values will appear.



Figure 44: Recipe Edit Screen - Recipe Step Editor items

4. Recipe step shift 'Up' and 'Down' buttons – If you have created a recipe and some of the steps are in the wrong order, you can shift them around by selecting the step in the recipe display window and then moving up or down using the 'Up' and 'Down' buttons highlighted in the figure below.



Figure 45: Recipe Edit shift 'Up' and 'Down' buttons

5. Recipe editor '*New recipe*' button – If at anytime you click the '*New recipe*' button, it will clear all the data in the Recipe Editor screen and allow you to start making a new recipe.





🛞 Recipe Editor	- 19419			
Recipe Name		New recipe	a	
Manual_Recipe		- Open me	250.00	
Step RATE SOAK	Up Down	Save file Read from controller Write to controller	228.00 206.00 184.00 162.00 149.00	
Rate 200°F/h to 150°F Soek for 20 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 200°F Soak for 20 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 80°F			118.00 96.00 74.00	
			2500 30100 4120 4120 4120 4120 4120 4120 4120	1.68 h

Figure 46: Recipe Edit Screen - New Recipe Button

6. Recipe Editor 'Open file' and 'Save file' buttons – You can save recipes on your computer and re-open them later for editing. When you click on the 'Save file' button a dialog box will open to ask you where you would like to save it to. Navigate to the desired location and enter a name for the file. If you click on the 'Open file' button it will bring up a dialog box asking you to select the recipe file you want to open. If you select a valid recipe file, the recipe will be loaded into the Recipe Editor screen for editing.

🕑 Kecipe Editor												- 1	42
Recipe Name		New recine	C										
Manual_Recipe		Open file	250.00										
Step	Up	Save file	228.00										
New O SOAK 300 C OF/h to 80 C	Down	Read from controller	184.00					1					
Corner Rounding Percent		Write to controller	162.00 140.00		/	-		/					
Rate 200°F/h to 150°F Soak for 20 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 200°F			118.00 96.00	/	/							1	
Soek for 20 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 80°F			74.00										
			30.00 g	17 h	34 h	405	4 23	۲ ۲	4 10	481	42	4 TS	-

Figure 47: Recipe Edit Screen - Open and Save file buttons

7. Recipe Editor Read and Write to and from the HEATVIEW controller – If you are currently connected to a HEATVIEW controller and it is actively updating data from it, you can transfer recipes directly to and from the HEATVIEW controller. If you click either of the buttons you will get another pop-up window allowing you to select which channel you want to interface with. Select the current channel that has the recipe you want to read from the drop-down menu and click 'OK'. The current recipe from the channel will be read and entered into the Recipe Editor window for editing. If you click Write to controller, the recipe in the Recipe Editor will be written to the specified channel.

			40.000										
ecipe Name		New recipe	0										
Manual_Recipe		Open file	250.00										
Step		Save file	228.00										
● RATE	Up	Save me	206.00										
SOAK 300 C *F/h to 80 C *F	Down	Read from controller	101.00					/	54				
Corner Rounding Percent		Channel: Channel 01	v		/	-	-	/					
late 200°F/h to 150°F		OK	Cancel	/									
late 300"F/h to 200"F				/								1	1
oak for 20 minutes			74.00)
me sou F/n to su F			57.00										
			52.00										
			30.00 C	£	÷	5	£	£	£	÷	£	E.	4
			8	11	35	5	9	00	8	18	E	in .	

Figure 48: Recipe Edit Screen - Channel selection

j. DELETEING a recipe step

To delete a step in the recipe, click on the step you want to remove in the recipe editor window, and the press the 'Delete' key on your keyboard. This will remove it from the recipe you are currently editing. It does not remove the step from a saved recipe. You will need to re-save the recipe using the 'Save file' button after deleting the step.

k. Recipe chart

As you edit the recipe steps the chart next to it will change to show the temperature profile the as the controller runs through this recipe. The time scale at the bottom shows the duration the it will take to run through the recipe. The image below shows the recipe will take about 1.68 hours to complete.



Figure 49: The recipe editor chart

I. Corner rounding percent

To prevent sudden changes in temperature rate through a recipe, the system can smooth the change from 'RATE' to 'SOAK' step. Essentially the rate of change will change slowly from the assigned rate over time to a zero rate then switch over to the SOAK step. The image below shows the difference between NO corner rounding to MAXIMUM corner rounding.





Figure 50: The difference in corner rounding.

9. Individual Channel Control

Every channel on the HEATVIEW controller acts as an independent controller. It can be started and stopped individually and they can all run their own heating recipes.

The channels can all run in 3 different modes:

1. Post Weld Mode:

In Post Weld mode, the channel will follow the recipe setup for the channel. Once the channel has run through all the steps in the recipe, the channel will stop itself.

2. Pre-Heat Mode:

In Pre-Heat mode, the channel will follow a simplified version of a recipe where it will heat the work piece to a defined temperature at a specified rate and then hold it there until the channel is manually stopped. When setting up Pre-Heat mode, you need to set 3 different values. They are:

- a. RATE: This is the rate the system will increase the heat at to reach the SOAK temperature.
- b. FINAL TEMPERATURE: This is the temperature the system will try to hold the work piece to until it is stopped.
- c. CURVE PERCENT: This is covered in section "Corner rounding percent" on page 45 of this document. Essentially it makes the system gradually increase its rate over time (as it starts heating) until it meets the set rate, then gradually decreases the rate as it approaches the final temperature. This reduces the sudden changes in rate and reduces overshoot.
- 3. Percentage Timer:

In this mode, the channel will pulse the output at a specified percentage. For instance, if the channel is set to 25%, the channel will turn power on for the heating pad for 25% of it output pulse time. It will run continuously and will only stop if the channel is manually stopped.

Each channel can also be set as a slave to another channel. If it is assigned as a slave, then it will follow all the settings from its Master channel. If the Master channel is started or stopped, all its slave channels will copy it. The slave channels will follow its recipe or manual values while running, but they will control their outputs individually to ensure the work piece heats correctly.

a. Setting up a channel

On the MAIN screen you can setup each channel individually, by clicking on the 'Settings' button for the specific channel. These buttons are highlighted in Figure 51 below. Once you click one of them, it will bring up the settings screen for the channel shown in Figure 52.





HeatView - 10.	0.0.9							- 🗆 X
\	ê 문 문	╘←→	بلا (Controller ID: 0.9			HEA	TVIEW
V1.20.27 Channel 01	Post Weld, Run	nning	Channel 02 Slave 01	Post Weld, Ru	Inning	<u>Channel 03</u>	Post Weld, Pau	ised
Temperature	C,	Chart	Temperature	C ,	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart
72°F	69	Settings	72°F	61	Settings	72°F	60 61 52	Settings
Set Point	44 60 36 50	Start 👻	- Point	44	Make Master	Point		art 🗸
72°F	28 60 20 30 11 20	Multi Slave Sel.	72°F	28		72°F	28	Multi Slave Sel.
Current	3 -5 0	Current Step:	Current	-5	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F	Current	-5	Resume
0 A	••	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F	0 A	Pri	Togglo Power	0 A	Pri	Rate 300°F/h to 150°F
Channel 04	Post Weld, Sto	pped	Channel 05	Post Weld, St No Recipe	opped	Channel 06	Post Weld, Stop	oped
Temperature	C ₁₆₃₇	Chart	Temperature	G	Chart	Temperature	3 637	Chart
3632°F	3273 2909 2514	Settings	142°F	131 116 101	Settings	3632°F	3273 2909 2544	Settings
Set Point	2180	Start -	s oint	86- 71-	Start -	Point	2180- 1816-	Start -
3632°F	1452	Multi Slave Sel.	142°F	55 10	Multi Slave Sel.	3632°1	1452 1088 721	Multi Slave Sel.
Current	359	Name Cycle Current Step:	Current	й -5	Name Cycle Current Step:	Current		Name Cycle Current Step:
0 A	Primary	Toggle Power	0 A	Primary	Toggle Power	0 A	Primary	Toggle Power

Figure 51: Settings buttons to setup individual channels

Assign Channel Mode	Start/Stop Channel
Start Stop Pause Run mode Post Weld Pre-Heat Pre-Heat Percentage timer Slave settings. Slave to Contactor u Channel Name	Recipe Name: TestRecipe Open File Rate 300°F/h to 150°F Soak for 15 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 225°F Soak for 1 hours, 0 minutes Rate -100°F/h to 90°F Curve Blend: 100 % Edit step
Slave master settings	Channel Name Pipe Center. TC 1306.
Output test to turn on out put to make sure correct pad connected.	Output Test Test Channel Current: TURN ON 0 Current: Curr

Figure 52: Channel settings screen

In the channel setup screen, you can define the channels running settings. You can start/stop the channels from the 'Start' and 'Stop' buttons from the top of the window. There is also a 'Pause' button. This will pause the channel at its current temperature. It will hold it there until the 'Resume' button is clicked. The 'Resume' button will appear once the channel has been paused.

If the channel is NOT running you can change the 'Run mode' by clicking on one of the radio buttons for the specific mode. As you select the different modes, the options in the 'Run mode setup window' will change to match the settings for the specific mode.



🚯 Channel 01 Settings - Stopped		- 0	×	🕢 Channel	01 Settings - Stopped			- 🗆 X
Start Stop Pause Run mode Post Weld Pre-Heat Percentage timer Slave settings. Slave settings. Slave to	Recipe Name: TestRecipe Rate 300°F/h to 150°F Soak for 15 minutes Rate 300°F/h to 225°F Soak for 1 hours, 0 minutes Rate - 100°F/h to 90°F Curve Blend: 100 %	Open File. Save File. Write to Cont Edit step	 roller	Start Run mod Post V Pre-H Perce Slave set Slave Contactor	Stop Stop veld eat tage timer to use count:	Pause	Pre-Hea Rate, °F Final Te Curve Pr	t settings //h 600.00 • mperature, %F 195.00 • ercent %6: 20.00 •
	Channel Name Pipe Center. TC 1306. Output Test Test Channel TURN ON C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Channel 01 Settings - Stopped Start Stop Run mode Post Weld Pre-Heat Percentage timer Slave settings. Slave to Contactor use count:	Pa	ause	Percentage timer Time when output is or	n, % [<u>20</u>	Channel Pipe Ce ×	I Name Inter. TC 1306. st nel Current: Temperature: DN 0 75 Ok Cancel
					Channel Name Pipe Center. TC 1306. Output Test Test Channel TURN ON 0	ent: Tempera 75 Ok C	ature:	

Figure 53: The different 'Run mode setup' windows in the channel settings screen

Once you have selected the desired 'Run mode' and the 'Run mode setup' screen has changed, you can enter the desired values for run mode for the channel.

In Pre-Heat mode, you can load a new recipe into the channel by opening a saved recipe and then writing it to the controller using the 'Write to controller' button on the right-hand side of the screen. The channel will keep its recipe from the previous time it ran, so if you are running the same recipe as the previous heat cycle, you do not need to reload it. If the recipe on the controller is one that you want to store on your computer, you can click the 'Read from controller' button to read the current recipe in the channel. Then you can save the recipe to your computer by clicking on the 'Save file...' button.

You can set the channel up to be a slave to another channel by selecting the check box next to the words 'Slave to'. Then in the drop-down menu, you can select which channel it should be a slave to. Once set as a slave, you cannot change any settings for the channel.

b. Skipping steps in the recipe

While a channel is running in Pre-Heat mode, you can skip steps in the auto sequence. To skip steps, you can click on the 'Previous step' and 'Next step' buttons on the channel settings screen. These buttons are hidden if the channel is not running. The buttons are shown in the image below.





Start - Stop	Pause	Recipe		
Run mode		Name: TestRecip	e	Open File
Post Weld		Rate 300°F/h to 1 Soak for 15 minute	50°F	Save File
 Pre-Heat Percentage timer 		Rate 300°F/h to 22: Soak for 1 hours, 0	5°F minutes	Write to Controlle
Slave settings.		Rate -100*F/h to 90 Curve Blend: 100 %	μπρ I	Previous step
Slave to	2			Next step
Contactor use count:	3490			Edit step
		Channel Name		
		Pipe Center. TC 1	306.	
		Output Test		
		Test Channel	Current:	Temperature:
		TURN ON	0	76

Figure 54: Skipping through steps button in recipe

c. Naming a channel

You can give channels names that would make it easier to identify in future. To do this, simply enter a name for the channel and click the Ok button. This name will then appear in the Main screen and will also be present in the legend on the chart on the PDF report for quality control.

d. Output Test

Once you have connected everything to the channel (heating pads and thermocouple) you can click on the output test. Just click on the 'TURN ON' button and the channels output contactor will be closed. You can then see if the correct amount of current goes through the pads and if it is on for long enough you should see the temperature change. To open the contactor again click on the same button again. If this is left on for too long the system will open the contactor itself after 1 minute to prevent damage.

10. Master Slave Features

One of the major benefits of this system is that all the output channels are controlled by the same system, so that their output controls and setpoints can be coupled to ensure smooth heating across multiple channels. To do this you can group the channels together as Master and Slave channels.

There can be multiple Master channels at a time with multiple Slaves. But once a channel is slaved to another it cannot be slaved to another. Also, once a channel is a master channel it cannot be slaved to another channel.

Any Master channel can have as many slaves as there are channels in the system.

a. Channel settings

Once a channel is a Master channel and it has Slave channels, then all the channel settings are copied from the Master channel to all the slave channels. So, you only need to setup the master channel and then slave all the channels with the exact same run settings and they will have all the same settings pushed to them from the Master channel.

b. Critical faults handling

Once a group of channels have been setup as Master and slaves the critical faults from each channel will affect all the other channels in the group. If a fault occurs on any channel that stops its output, the rest of the channels will go into Pause mode and hold their temperatures until the issue is fixed, reset and the group is restarted.

c. Temperature Coupling

Every time a group of Master Slaves channels is started or restarted from a pause state, the system will ramp up from the lowest channel temperatures. The other channels will hold their temperatures until the Set Point ramps above their current temperature. Only then will the channel follow the set point. An example of this is described below.

An example: if a channels thermocouple opens its output is stopped and this will invariably cause the channels temperature to drop. When this happens all the other channels in the group will go into a 'pause' state and hold their temperatures. Once the issue is fixed the group can be restarted. All of the channels are re-evaluated. The Set Point is then set to the lowest channel's temperature in the group. The Set Point will then climb back to where it should be using the channels ramp rate or the last recipe rate step value. If a specific channel in the group is then hotter than the current setpoint, it will keep its temperature until the Set Point is the same temperature as its temperature. The channel will no longer hold its temperature but will have the same Set Point as all the channels in the group.

This is shown in the image below. Channel 4 was the coolest when the group was restarted. So, you can see the Set Point increased from its temperature. Then as the Set Point passed Channel 6, it started following the Set Point too. Similarly, Channel 5 held its temperature the longest, then joined the group.









d. Automatic channel grouping

Once a group of channels have been setup as a Master Slave group then brining up the enlarged chart of the Master channel will show a chart with it and all the slave channels. When this happens, the first channel in the legend is the Master channel and then the rest are the slave channels.



Figure 56: Master slave channels on enlarged chart.

11. Creating PDF reports

Whenever the computer application is connected to a HEATVIEW controller and it sees a specific channel is running, it will read the temperature data from the controller at a regular interval (the interval is set in the settings screen of the application). This data is then stored locally in a database. The software can then create a PDF report based on this data. Once a PDF report has been generated you can save it to your computer and print it out as necessary.

To generate a PDF report, follow these steps.



PLEASE NOTE: if you want to generate a report for data stored on the controller, you will need to follow the steps in the section 12 - "Uploading backup data from controller".

- 1. Open the computer application.
- 2. Navigate to the channel you want to generate the report on the Main screen.
- 3. Click on the 'Report' button for that channel. (This button is highlighted in the figure below)



Figure 57: Report generation button

4. Once you have clicked on the button the report generation screen will be shown. You will then need to select the heat cycle you want to create the PDF report for. The report generation screen is shown in the figure below. The figure below the report generation screen is the heat cycle setup box. The items in the heat cycle setup box are all described here:





- a. "Controller:" If you have ever connected to more than one HEATVIEW controller you will have more than one database on your computer. You will need to select the controller ID that was used to run the heat cycle.
- b. "Channel:" This is the channel number that was used to run the heat cycle. If this is for a Master/Slave group, you can select the Master channel and it will automatically add all the slaves.
- c. "One cycle" If the controller was not stopped during a heat cycle, or communication with the controller was not lost, then you can load a single cycle and find the one you want from the drop-down menu right below the "One cycle" text. If the cycle was named, the cycle name will show up in the drop-down menu, otherwise the cycles name will be the start and end dates.
- d. "Multiple cycles" If the heat cycle was interrupted in anyway, you can combine multiple stored heat cycles. Here you can select the start and end times for your heat cycle and the software will combine them into a single chart.
- e. "Num points to ignore chart" start/end If there was noise at the start or end of the channel due to setting up. You can ignore the first few or last few points by adding a value to these fields.
- f. "Setpoint Line" You can show or hide the Set Point line from the chart from this group box.

Once you have entered all the information correctly, you can click the 'Apply' button for the software to read all the data in the database and show the chart on the chart window. (this is shown in the window below).

🚯 Report on Channel 01		- 🗆 X			
Heat cycle	Project title: Manual creation charts	Operation Mode			
Controller: 0.9 ~	Chart title: Ch 1 powered, Ch2 not heating pads connected	Post Weld - Recipe:			
Channel: Channel 01 ~	Location: Grand Controls Office	POST WELD HEAT TREAT:			
One cycle	Job Number: Overhead	Recipe name: TestRecipe 1: Rate 300°F/h to 150°F			
Cycel for Manual \sim	PO Number: None	2: Soak for 15 minutes			
○ Multiple cycles	Additional Info + -	4: Soak for 1 hours, 0 minutes 5: Rate -100°E/h to 00°E			
From: 19 Feb 10:21 AM ~	Name Value ^	5. Rate 100 1/11 (0 50 1			
To: 19 Feb 1:10 PM \checkmark					
Num points to ignore chart begin: 0	Project note This chart was created with only 1 heating pad and channel 2's TC is welded t				
Num points to ignore chart end: 0					
Setpoint Line					
○ off		Logo File			
(On		Logo File:			
Apply	v	Load Logo File Clear File Name			
Chart Notes + -	Interval = 10m Graduations = 10 deg	*			
1 - Caused a fault here to stop th	10:21 am 10:31 am 10:31 am 10:31 am 11:11 am 11:11 am 11:11 am 11:11 am 11:12 am 11:13 am 11:13 am 11:31 am 11:	Notes Notes Pipe Center. TC 1306. Ch 2 Set Point			
	ара	한 같 같 것 이 이 Make Report Cancel			

Figure 58: Report generation screen

Heat cycle			
Controller:	0.9	\sim	
Channel:	Channel 01	\sim	
One cycl	e		
Cycel for Manual ~			
O Multiple	cycles		
From: 19	9 Feb 10:21 AM	\sim	
To: 19	9 Feb 1:10 PM	\sim	
Num points	to ignore chart begin:	0 🗘	
Num points	to ignore chart end:	0 🗘	
Setpoint L	ine		
◯ Off			
On			
		Apply	

Figure 59: Heat cycle selection section of the report generation screen

5. Once the heat cycle has been read in from the database and shown correctly on the chart, you can then setup the report. First you can add or remove notes from the chart. To add a note to the chart, click on the '+' button 'chart notes' box in the report





generation screen. (This box is shown in the figure below). Once you have clicked on the '+' button you can click on the chart where you want to add the note (you need to click on a chart line to add the note). This will bring up a small window for you to type in the note. If you want to delete a note, select the note in the 'chart notes' box and click the '-' button to delete it.

Chart Notes	+ -		
1 - Caused a fault here to stop th			

Figure 60: Chart note box on report generation screen

- 6. Type the project information into the report generation window.
 - a. Fill out all the heat cycle info, such as the *Project title*, *chart title*, *location*, *PO number* and *Job number*.
 - b. 'Additional information' You can add any information to the report you would like to in the additional information box. Simply click in the boxes and add the text you would like to see in the report. If you look at the figure below, you can see the data entered into the report generation screen and on the RHS you can see how that data is shown on the PDF report.

iditional Info		+ -			
Name leating mode	Value	^			
ooling mode	Slow			Additional Information	
			Heating mode	Fast	
			Cooling mode	Slow	
			cooing mode	SDW	
		~			

Figure 61: Additional information box in the report generation screen

- 7. Once all the data has been entered correctly, click on the 'Make Report' button. This will open a file save dialog box.
- 8. Select a location on your drive to save the report to, enter a name for the file and click the 'Save' button.

Below is a in image of a report generated from the settings in "Figure 58: Report generation screen" on page 56 above.



Figure 62: Example report





12. Uploading backup data from controller

In the event the computer application did not record a heat cycle correctly, you can upload the heat cycle temperature data from the controller. To do this, you can follow these steps.



PLEASE NOTE: The data backed-up on the controller is not as detailed as the data logged through this computer software. It should only be used if something happens to the computer connection to the controller and the software fails to record the heat cycle.

- Open the computer application.
- Connect to the HEATVIEW controller that has the backed-up data.
- Click on the upload button on the title bar of the software. The button looks like this:



• If the temperature controller has any channels that are currently running, this will bring up the screen similar to the one in the figure below. If this message appears, stop all the running channels. Wait for at least 30 seconds and then click the upload button again.



Figure 63: Upload backed-up data wait for all channels to stop message

• If you click on the upload button once all the channels have been stopped for at least 30 seconds, you will see a channel select screen as shown in the image below.

↔ Select Channel ×		
Channel:		
Ch 01	~	
ОК	Cancel	

Figure 64: Channel select screen for uploading backed-up data

- Select the channel you want to upload data for in the drop-down box and hen click the 'OK' button.
- This will bring up a report generation screen as shown in the figure below.



💮 Report on Channel 01					_	
Backup File CLOG - Channel 1 - 2019_08_05_22_13 - TestRestart V Upload file	Project title: PRO Chart title: CHA Additional Info	JECT TITLE	+ -	Operation Mode		
	Name Heating mode Cooling mode	Value Fast Slow	^ 			
Chart Notes + -						
	500 450 400 350 300 250 200 150 100 50 0 4:57 PM	5:02 PM 5:07 P	M 5:12 F	PM 5:17 PM	5:22 PM	5:27 PM
		3.02111 3.071		11 5.17111	Make Report	Cancel

Figure 65: Uploading data report generation screen

- In the top left of the screen there is a drop-down menu in the section labeled 'Backup file'. This section of the window is shown in the figure below. Go through the file names that are backed up on the controller and select the one you want to upload. The filenames will be as follows:
 - LOG Channel xx Date_Time Run data
 - xx is the channel number
 - Date will be in the format YYYY_MM_DD
 - Time will be in the format HH_MM
 - Run data will either be the recipe name if it was in auto, Manual if in manual mode or PT if in percentage timer mode.

Backup File	
C LOG	- Channel 1 - 2019_08_0522_13 - TestRestart 🗸
	Upload file

Figure 66: Upload data cycle selection section

- Once you have selected the file you want to upload, click the 'Upload file' button.
- Wait for the system to fully read all the data. This may take a quite a few minutes, depending on the length of the heat cycle.
- Once the data has been fully uploaded you will see the report generation screen has been data added to it. An example of this is shown in the image below. Simply fill out all the fields in the report generation screen and click on the 'Make report' button to generate a PDF report of the data.





Figure 67: Upload data complete and ready for PDF generation

